
 

Licensing Sub Committee 

Agenda 

Tuesday, 20 December 2022 at 6.30 p.m. 
The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Farzana Chowdhury, Democratic Services Officer, 
farzana.chowdhury@towerhamlets.gov.uk 020 7364 4120 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

  

Contact for further enquiries:  

Farzana Chowdhury, Democratic Services Officer, 

farzana.chowdhury@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 4120  

1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG  

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

 



 

 

 
Public Information  
 
Viewing or Participating in Committee Meetings 
 
The meeting will be broadcast live on the Council’s website. A link to the website is 
detailed below. The press and public are encouraged to watch this meeting on line.  
 
Please note: Whilst the meeting is open to the public, the public seating in the meeting 
room for observers may be limited due to health and safety measures. You are advised 
to contact the Democratic Services Officer to reserve a place. 

 
Meeting Webcast 
The meeting is being webcast for viewing through the Council’s webcast system. 
http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our 
website from day of publication.   

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for the relevant 
committee and meeting date.  

Agendas are available on the Modern.Gov, Windows, iPad and Android apps 

Scan this QR code to view the electronic agenda  

 

http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


 

 

 

A Guide to Licensing Sub Committee  
 
 

The Licensing Sub Committee is made up of 3 Members of the Licensing 
Committee.  In summary, the Sub Committee will determine applications to grant, vary 
or review a license submitted under the Licensing Act 2003 where representations have 
been made. 
  

Public Engagement 
Meetings of the committee are open to the public to attend, and a timetable for meeting 
dates and deadlines can be found on the council’s website.  
 

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgAgendaManagementTimetable.aspx?RP=327


 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

Licensing Sub Committee  

 
Tuesday, 20 December 2022 

 
6.30 p.m. 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
  To receive any apologies for absence. 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 7 - 8)  
 
 Members are reminded to consider the categories of interest, identified in the Code of 

Conduct for Members to determine: whether they have an interest in any agenda item 
and any action they should take. For further details, see the attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
Members are also reminded to declare the nature of the interest at the earliest 
opportunity and the agenda item it relates to. Please note that ultimately it is the 
Members’ responsibility to identify any interests and also update their register of interest 
form as required by the Code. 
 
If in doubt as to the nature of an interest, you are advised to seek advice prior the 
meeting by contacting the Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services. 

2. RULES OF PROCEDURE  (Pages 9 - 18)  
 
 To note the rules of procedure which are attached for information. 

3. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
3 .1 Temporary Event Notice for Space 289, Railway Arch 289 Cambridge Heath Road, 

London E2 9HA  (Pages 19 - 54) 
 
  

Licensing Objectives: 

 Public Nuisance 
 
Representations by: 

 Environmental Protection (Noise) 
 
Bethnal Green West Ward 
 
 
 



 
 

 

3.2  Temporary Event Notice for Suvlaki - shoreditch, 161 Brick Lane, London E1 6SB   
(Pages 55 - 100) 

 
  

Licensing Objectives: 

 Crime & Disorder 

 Public Nuisance 
 
Representations by: 

 Metropolitan Police 
 
Weavers Ward 
 

3.3  Application for a New Premises Licence, Jack the Chipper 96 Whitechapel High  
Street, London E1 7RA  (Pages 101 - 186) 

 
  

Licensing Objectives: 

 Public Nuisance 

 Crime and Disorder 
 
Representation by: 
Licensing Authority - Withdrawn 
Environmental Protection (Noise) - Withdrawn 
Resident – SPIRE Chair 
 
Ward: Spitalfields and Banglatown 
 

 
Next Meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee 
Tuesday, 17 January 2023 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in The Council Chamber, Town 
Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE 

MONITORING OFFICER 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for 

Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution  

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in 

Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests; 

(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as 

husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to 

be considered.  Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence. 

Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the 

decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public 

gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address 

the Committee.  

DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a 

request to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive. 

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered – 

(Non - DPIs) 

You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts 

or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to 

bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose 

or aimed at influencing public opinion. 

Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate 
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:  
 

 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to 
impair your judgement of the public interest.  If so, you must withdraw and take no part 
in the consideration or discussion of the matter. 

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest. 
 

Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the 
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in 
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In such 
matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding Non DPI 
- interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph. 
 

Guidance on Predetermination and Bias  
 

Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to 
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes 
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of 
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.  
 

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict 
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting  
 

In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the 
matter.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



Further Advice contact: Janet Fasan, Monitoring Officer, Tel: 0207 364 4800. 
 

APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member, 
or towards the election expenses of the Member. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or 
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 
 

Page 8



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 1  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

GOVERNING APPLICATIONS FOR 

PREMISES LICENCES  

AND OTHER PERMISSIONS 

UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Last Reviewed: 14th June 2016 

Reviewed By: Senior Corporate and Governance Legal 
Officer 

Approved By: Licensing Committee 

Date Approved: 14th June 2016 

Version No.  1 

Document Owner: Paul Greeno 

Post Holder: Senior Corporate and Governance Legal 
Officer 

Date of Next Scheduled Review: 31st March 2018 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 2  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

1. Interpretation 
 
1.1 These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under 

the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended) (‘the Hearings Regulations’). The Procedures 
take into account the Licensing Act (Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates) Regulations 2005. 
 

1.2 Except where otherwise stated, references in this Code are to the Licensing 
Committee and its Sub-committees and the expression ‘Licensing Committee’ 
should be interpreted accordingly.  

 
1.3 The Hearings Regulations provide (Regulation 21) that a Licensing Authority 

shall, subject to the provisions of those Regulations, determine for itself the 
procedure to be followed at a hearing. 

 
1.4 These Procedures, therefore, set out the way in which Licensing Committee 

Meetings will be conducted under the Licensing Act 2003, following the 
requirements of the Hearings Regulations. 

 
1.5 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply 

with any provision of the Hearings Regulations (Regulation 31) save that in any 
case of such an irregularity, the Licensing Committee shall, if it considers that 
any person may have been prejudiced as a result of the irregularity, take such 
steps as it thinks fit to cure the irregularity before reaching its determination 
(Regulation 32). 

 
2. Composition of Sub-Committee 
 
2.1 The Sub-Committee will consist of three (3) members and no business shall be 

transacted unless three (3) members of the Licensing Committee are present 
and able to form a properly constituted Licensing Sub-Committee.  In such 
cases the Chair shall have a second or casting vote. 

 
3. Procedure 
 
3.1 The hearing shall take place in public save that the Licensing Committee may 

exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it considers that, on 
balance, it is in the public interest to do so.  The parties and any person 
representing them may be excluded in the same way as another member of 
the public.  Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit 
to the Licensing Committee in writing, any information which, they would have 
been entitled to give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there 
are a number of items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short 
period, whilst another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out 
effectively. 
 

Page 10



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 3  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

3.2 The Chair will begin by asking the parties to identify themselves and confirm 
whether or not they are represented. 

 
3.3 The Licensing Committee should always satisfy itself that sufficient notice of 

the hearing has been given to all parties and if not satisfied, then the Licensing 
Committee should take such steps as it thinks fit to deal with that issue before 
reaching its determination and this could include adjourning that application to 
a later date. 

 
3.4 The Licensing Committee will then consider any requests by a party for any 

other person to be heard at the hearing in accordance with the Regulations.  
Permission will not be unreasonably withheld provided proper notice has been 
given. 

 
3.5 The Chair will then explain how the proceedings will be conducted, and 

indicate any time limits that may apply to the parties to the application.  In 
setting time limits, the Licensing Committee will take into account the 
importance of ensuring that all parties receive a fair hearing, and the 
importance of ensuring that all applications are determined expeditiously and 
without undue delay.  Further the Licensing Committee must have regard to 
the requirement to allow each party an equal amount of time. 

 
3.6 If a party considers that any time limit is not sufficient then they should 

address the Licensing Committee and which will determine accordingly. 
 
3.7 If any party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be 

represented at the hearing or any party does not give notice that they will not 
be attending but fails to attend and is not represented, the Licensing 
Committee may proceed in their absence or adjourn the hearing if it considers 
it to be necessary in the public interest.  An adjournment will not be 
considered where due to the operation of the Hearing Regulations it would not 
be possible to adjourn. 

 
3.8 If the Licensing Committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must 

specify the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned and 
why it is considered necessary in the public interest. 

 
3.9 If the Licensing Committee holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will 

consider at the hearing the application, representation or notice given by that 
party. 

 
3.10 The Chair will invite an Officer of the Licensing Section to present the report by 

briefly summarising the application and the number and type of the 
representations as set out in the papers circulated.  The Officer will also advise 
of any discussions held with the parties; any amendments made to the 
application; any representations withdrawn; and any agreed conditions that 
the Licensing Committee is being asked to consider.  The Officer shall not give 

Page 11



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 4  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

any opinion on the application or ask the Committee to make an inference 
based on such an opinion. 

 
3.11 Members of the Licensing Committee can then ask questions of clarification of 

the Licensing Officer or seek legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the 
Licensing Committee if they require in respect of matters raised during the 
presentation by the Licensing Officer. 

 
3.12 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee will then give any relevant legal 

advice that the Licensing Committee need to take into consideration. 
 
3.13 The Chair will then ask the applicant or their representative, if present, to 

present a summary of the nature and extent of the application. This should be 
brief, avoid repetition of material already available to the Licensing Committee 
in the Officer’s report or otherwise, and include any reasons why an exception 
should be made to the Council’s Licensing Policy, where appropriate, and 
respond to the written representations received. The submission may be 
followed by the evidence of any person who has been given permission by the 
Committee to give supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant or who has 
made a representation in favour of the application. 

 
3.14 The application is to be presented within the time limit that has been set. 
 
3.15 Where an applicant is unrepresented and having difficulty in presenting their 

application then the Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask 
questions of the applicant so that the relevant points are addressed and 
clarified for the Licensing Committee. 

 
3.16 Members of the Licensing Committee may ask questions of the person 

presenting the case after their address as well as any other person who has 
spoken in support of the application.  Members can also ask questions of the 
applicant as well as any other person present for the applicant who they 
consider can assist. 

 
3.17 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the 

purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee. 
 
3.18 The Chair will then ask the persons who have made representations against 

the application to address the Licensing Committee within the time limit that 
has been set. They should not repeat what is already set out in their 
representations or notice or raise new matters. In their address they should 
provide clarification on any points previously requested by the Council.  The 
submission may be followed by the evidence of any person who has been 
given permission by the Committee to give supporting evidence. 

 
3.19 Members of the Licensing Committee may then ask questions of the persons 

making representations against the application and any other person who has 

Page 12



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 5  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

spoken in support of such representation.  Members can also ask questions of 
any other person present who they consider can assist. 

 
3.20 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the 

purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee. 
 
3.21 Petitions will be treated as representations provided they meet the 

requirements for relevant representations set out in the Licensing Act 2003.  
Members should proceed with caution when relying upon petitions used as 
evidence due to the structure and wording used. 

 
3.22 The Licensing Committee will disregard any information given by a party, or 

any other person appearing at the hearing, which is not relevant to: 
 

a) their application, representation or notice; and 

b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention 
objective where notice has been given by the police. 

 
3.23 The Chair will intervene at any stage of the hearing to prevent repetitious or 

irrelevant points being raised. 
 
3.24 Cross examination of any party or any other person allowed to appear will not 

be allowed unless specifically permitted by the Chair. 
 
3.25 There is no right for any party to sum up but they may be permitted to do at 

the discretion of the Chair and within time limits prescribed by the Chair. 
 
3.26 The Licensing Committee will consider its decision in private save that the Legal 

Adviser and Democratic Services Officer will remain with them. 
 
3.27 The Licensing Committee will normally return to open session to announce its 

decision but in cases where the prescribed time limit allows for a later 
determination and it is appropriate to determine the matter within that time 
then the Chair will advise the parties present that the decision will not be 
announced then but that the determination will take place within the 
prescribed time limit and that written notification will be dispatched to all 
parties advising then of the determination. 

 
4. Exclusions 
 
4.1 In addition to any exclusion under paragraph 3.1 above, The Licensing 

Committee may require any person attending the hearing who in their opinion 
is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may refuse to 
permit the person to return; or allow them to return only on such conditions as 
Licensing Committee may specify. 

 

Page 13



Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 6  
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017 

4.2 Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 
Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. 

 
 

Page 14



  

Guidance for Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings. 

 
(1) Attendance at Meetings.  
All meetings of the Sub- Committee are open to the public and press to attend. On rare 
occasions, the Sub-Committee may retire to consider private business that will be 
clearly marked on the agenda as such. The press and public will be excluded for those 
confidential items only.   We try to keep confidential reports to an absolute minimum.  
We request that you show courtesy to all present and please keep mobile phones on 
silent. Meetings can reach full capacity and seats are allocated on a first come first 
come served basis. 
 
(2) Licensing Sub-Committee Role and Membership. 
In summary, the Sub - Committee will consider and determine applications to grant, 
vary or review a license submitted under the Licensing Act 2003 where representations 
have been made. The full terms of reference can be found on the Committee webpages 
(see below). The Licensing Sub - Committee will consist of 3 Members of the main 
Licensing Committee. Meetings are normally held in the Town Hall Council Chamber. 

 

 
Licensing Sub- Committee Webpages 

 
To view go to the Committee and Member Services web page: 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee - ‘agenda, reports, decisions and minutes’, then 
click on ‘Licensing Sub- Committee’. 

 
The pages include: 
 

 Terms of Reference for the Licensing Sub -Committee. 
 

 Meeting dates, agendas and minutes. 
 

 Agenda timetable including agenda publication dates. (To view click ‘browse 
meetings and agendas for this committee’, then ‘show agenda management 
timetable’). 

 

 
(3) Access to Committee Papers. 
The agenda for Sub - Committee meetings is published five clear (working) days before 
the Sub - Committee meeting on the Committee webpages (except for certain types of 
applications where special rules apply). All Committee papers (i.e. agendas, reports, 
minutes and decisions) are published on the website and also available on iPad and 
Android tablet apps downloadable for free from their respective app stores.  
 
(4) Who can speak at Licensing Sub- Committee meetings?  
Only interested parties may address the Sub-Committee (those who have made a valid 
representation) and the applicant and their representatives. Although the Sub-
Committee may allow other persons to present the interested parties evidence or to 
give supporting evidence. If you are planning to attend the hearing to address the 
committee, you are advised to contact the Committee officer - see the Committee 

Page 15

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee
http://moderngov.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=312
http://moderngov.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=312
http://moderngov.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgAgendaManagementTimetable.aspx?RP=312
http://moderngov.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgAgendaManagementTimetable.aspx?RP=312


 
 
 

pages and agenda front page for contact details. Speakers are advised to arrive at the 
start of the meeting in case the order of business is changed. Speakers will be called to 
speak by the Chair at the appropriate time. If speakers are not present by the time their 
application is heard, the Committee may consider the item in their absence. 
 
(5) What can be circulated?  
Should you wish to submit any material, please contact the Committee/Licensing 
Officer as soon as possible. The Sub-Committee may accept information at the hearing, 
however this is only with the agreement of all parties present.  

 

(6) How will the applications be considered?  
The Sub-Committee will normally consider the items in agenda order subject to the 
Chair’s discretion. The hearing procedure is detailed at the end of this guidance. 
 

(7) How can I find out about a decision?  
You can contact Democratic Services the day after the meeting to find out the 
decisions. 

 
(8) Queries on reports. 
For any questions, please contact the Officer named on the front of the report.  

 
Typical Seating Plan for Licensing Sub - Committee Meetings in the Town Hall  

Council Chamber. 
 

Public Seating  
 

Public Seating  
 

Public Seating  
 

Public Seating 
 

Public Seating 

 Objectors 
Benches 

 

 
Sub-Committee 

Members 
 

Chair 

Legal Officer 

Applicants 
Benches 

Committee Officer 

 

Licensing Officer 

 
 

Page 16



 
 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE  
 
All interested parties to the hearing must notify Democratic Services within 
prescribed timescales that they intend to attend and/or be represented at the hearing 
and whether any witnesses will be attending on their behalf. The meeting will be in 
the form of a discussion led by the Sub Committee, cross examination of either party 
will not be permitted.  
 
The Chair will allocate an equal amount of speaking time to each party. Where there 
is more than one representation raising the same or similar grounds, those parties 
should consider nominating a single representative to address the Sub-Committee on 
their behalf at the hearing.  
 
The hearing will proceed as follows (subject to the discretion of the Chair). 
 
1. Chair will introduce him/herself and ask Members, officers, and all interested 
parties present at the meeting to introduce themselves.  
 
2. Licensing Officer to present the report. 
 
3. Committee Members to ask questions of officer (if any). 
 
4. The Applicant to present their case in support of their application (including any 
witnesses they may have). 
 
5. Committee Members to ask questions of applicants and their witnesses or ask for 
points of clarification.  
 
6. The relevant Responsible Authorities in attendance will present their case and  
their reasons for representation (including any witnesses they may have). 
 
7. The Objectors/Interested Parties in attendance will present their case and their 
reasons for objecting (including any witnesses they may have). 
 
8.  Committee Members to ask questions of Responsible Authorities, objectors and 
their witnesses or ask for points of clarification. 
 
9.  Applicant (with exception and with permission of the Chair) can ask questions of  
the other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.  
 
10. Interested Parties to the hearing (with exception and with the permission of the  
Chair) can ask questions of the applicant/other parties to the hearing and their  
witnesses.  
 
11. Chair’s closing remarks   
 
12. Sub-Committee retire from the meeting with the Committee Officer and Legal 
Officer and consider their decision.  
 
13. The Sub-Committee will return to the meeting and Chair announces the decision 
together with the reasons for the decision and any right to appeal.  
 
14. A Decision letter will be sent to all interested parties confirming the decision 
made. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee : 

 
Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Date  
 
 

Classification 

 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of David Tolley 
Head of Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

 
Originating Officer:  
Kathy Driver 
Principal Licensing Officer 

 

Title:  Licensing Act 2003 Temporary Event Notice for  
Space 289, Railway Arch 289 Cambridge Heath Road, 
London E2 9HA 
 

Ward affected:Bethnal Green West 

 

 
 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant:                                         Harry Follett       

 
Address of Premises:    Railway Arch 289 
 Cambridge Heath Road 
 London E2 9HA 
                                      
  
                                     
 
Objectors:     Environmental Health 
 
 
 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   

Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 
register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

Licensing Act 2003 Section 182 Guidance 
Licensing Policy 
File Only 
 

 Kathy Driver 
020 7364 5171 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3.1



3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a Standard Temporary Event Notice.  
 
3.2 Enclosed is a copy of the application. (See Appendix 1). 
 
3.3 The applicant has described the nature of the application as follows: 

The supply of alcohol and Regulated Entertainment for New Years 
Event. 

 
3.4 The Notice was given on 6th December 2022 and the Responsible 

Authorities were notified of the Temporary Event Notice on 7th December 
2022 . 
 

3.5 The premises that has been applied for is: Railway Arch 289 Cambridge 
Heath Road, London E2 9HA 

 
3.6 The dates that have been applied for are as follows:1st January 2023 
 
3.7 The times that have been applied for are as follows: 00:00 hours to 

06:00  hours 
 
3.8 A map showing the relevant premises and immediate area is included as 

Appendix 2. 
 
 

4.0 Premises Licence 
 

4.1 The venue holds a premises licence.  Members can impose one or more 
conditions of the existing licence on the TEN (in so far as such 
conditions are not inconsistent with the event) if it considers that this is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. A copy of the 
licence is attached in Appendix 3. 
 
 

5.0 Temporary Event Notices 
 
5.1 Temporary Event Notices (TENs) are a creation of the Licensing Act 

2003. They provide a method by which licensable activities can be 
carried out on a temporary basis (max. 168 hrs) without a licence. The 
maximum number that can attend at any one time is 499. At least 10 full 
working days notice must be given to the licensing authority. When a 
TEN cannot be obtained, for example the event is over 499, then a full 
premises licence must be obtained, for a limited duration. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Authority cannot oppose an application, (nor can local 

residents or businesses. The Licensing Authority must reject any 
application that does not meet the rules as to numbers, maximum per 
year etc. The limits for 2022 and 2023 are as follows: 20 TEN per 

Page 20



calendar year or 26 days. The Responsible Authorities that can object is 
the Metropolitan Police or Environmental Protection.  

 
 

5.3 The Police and Environmental Protection can object on the grounds that 
allowing the event to go ahead will undermine one of the Licensing 
Objectives. 

5.4 At any time before a hearing is held or dispensed, the premises user and 
EH or Police may come to an agreement and modify the temporary event 
notice by making changes to it. 

 
5.5 Following an objection by the relevant Responsible Authority the 

Licensing Authority must decide whether; 
 
(1) Grant the TEN;  
 
(2) Grant the TEN with conditions (if a premises licence is in place) 

and specify conditions as appropriate to the TEN. 
 

(3) Refuse the TEN by serving a Counter Notice  
 
5.6 The Licensing Authority can apply one or more conditions ; 

(a)  if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to do so,  

(b) the conditions are also imposed on a premises licence or club 
premises certificate that has effect in respect of the same 
premises, or any part of the same premises, as the temporary 
event notice, and  

(c) the conditions would not be inconsistent with the carrying out of 
the licensable activities under the temporary event notice. 
 
 

5.7 Where the authority decides to impose one or more conditions; 
(a) the authority must give the premises user notice of the decision; 
 
(b) the notice must be accompanied by a separate statement (the 

“statement of conditions”) which sets out the conditions that 
have been imposed on the temporary event notice; and  
 

(c) a copy of the notice and statement of conditions must be given 
to each relevant party. 

 
 
5.8 LATE TENs have been created through the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibilities Act 2011, a Late TEN can be made no later than FIVE 
working days and no earlier than NINE working days before the event.  
The limits to these applications are no more than 2 for a non personal 
licence holder or no more than 10 for a personal licence holder.  

 

Page 21



5.9 The Police and Environmental Protection can object to Late TENs, if an 
objection is made the Licensing Authority must issue a counter notice 
advising the event cannot take place.  

 
6.0 Objections 
 
6.1 Environmental Protection objections are contained in Appendix 4.  
 
 
7.0 Advice to Members 
 
7.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended 

legislation whereby Environmental Protection alongside Police can 
object to Temporary Event Notice under any of the licensing objectives.  
 

7.2 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003. As always the 
decision is on the civil burden of proof, i.e. the balance of probability.  

 
7.3 Members can consider any of the licensing objectives. Other matters can 

also be dealt with elsewhere by primary legislation. 
 

7.4 Premises users are not required to be on the premises for the entire 
duration of the event authorised by the TEN, but they will remain liable to 
prosecution for certain offences that may be committed at the premises 
during the period covered by it. These include, for example, the offences 
of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling 
alcohol to children; and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed 
premises. 

 
7.5 The police or local authority exercising environmental health functions 

may contact the premises user to discuss their objections and try to 
come to an agreement which will allow the proposed licensable activities 
to proceed. The TEN can be modified. If there is no agreement, the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the notice. 

  
   
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
 
10.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 A copy of the application 
 

Page 22



Appendix 2  Maps of the area 
 
Appendix 3 Premises Licence 
 
Appendix 4 Environmental Protection objection 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Tower Hamlets
Temporary Event Notice
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk

Telephone: 020 7364 5008 

* required information

Section 1 of 9

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference Space 289 In-house NYE Party You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name Harry

* Family name Follett

* E-mail

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means you are 
applying so you can be employed, or for 
some other personal reason, such as 
following a hobby.

Applicant Business

Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number 11913332

Business name MHP25 Ltd
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

VAT number - Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Legal status Private Limited Company

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business Venue Manager 

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Registered Address

Building number or name

City or town

County or administrative area

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Section 2 of 9

APPLICATION DETAILS (See also guidance on completing the form, general notes and note 1) 

Have you had any previous or maiden names?

Yes No

* Your date of birth

 dd               mm             yyyy

Applicant must be 18 years of age or older

National Insurance number
This box need not be completed if you are an 
individual not liable to pay UK national 
insurance.

Place of birth

Correspondence Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as 
required.  Select “No” to enter a completely 
new set of details.

Building number or name 289 railway arches

Street cambridge heath road

District bethnal green

City or town london 

County or administrative area londone

Postcode e29ha

Country United Kingdom Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Additional Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as 
required.  Select “No” to enter a completely 
new set of details.

Telephone number

Other telephone number

Section 3 of 9

THE PREMISES

I, the proposed user, hereby give notice under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003 of my proposal to carry out a temporary 
activity at the premises described below.
Give the address of the premises where you intend to carry on the licensable activities or if it has no address give a detailed 
description (including the Ordnance Survey references). (See also guidance on completing the form, note 2)

* Does the premises have an address? 

Yes No

Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

Yes No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details 
from section one, or amend them as 
required.  Select “No” to enter a completely 
new set of details.

* Building number or name railway arches

* Street 289 cambridge heath road

District

* City or town london

County or administrative area

* Postcode e29hd

* Country United Kingdom

* Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have effect in relation 
to the premises (or any part of the premises)? 

Neither Premises licence Club premises certificate

* Premises licence number 29359

Location Details

* Provide further details about the location of the event

Space 289 is a licensed bar and live music venue on Cambridge Heath road 

Page 28



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, give a 
description and details below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 3)

We will use the full premises 

Describe the nature of the premises below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 4)

Live music venue and multidisciplinary arts space

Describe the nature of the event below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 5)

On New Years Eve we will be hosting a Space289 xmas party, inviting friends and family of the venue to play and attend. 
The music played will be chilled electronic DJ sets, allowing everyone to celebrate and ease into 2023 in style. The crowd 
will be close friends of the venue, who are extremely respectful and we have not had issues with previously. It will be an 
inhouse event to celebrate the final year of Space289 (and the final event too!), which is one of the reasons of wanting to 
extend the license until 6AM, due to it being a special occasion for the venue. 
 
-Sound Control Measures: All doors will remain closed throughout the event. We will speak to the security to make sure 
they are very strict about people not standing blocking the doors 
 
We will make sure that security ensure people leave the venue swiftly and do not hang around in the street outside the 
premises. 
 
We will also make sure all new engineers have been properly briefed about sound levels 
 
We will also put an extra security on the smoking area and extra barriers to keep any talking and noise to an absolute 
minimum. 
 
Drugs:  
As with any event there is a risk that people will try to enter with concealed drugs. Our SIA staff are trained to conduct body 
and bag searches for everyone on entry and we also have security and attendants monitoring the bathroom area to make 
sure nothing untoward is taking place in that area and around the club. Anyone caught with drugs is immediately ejected 
from the venue and any drugs confiscated. All of our supervisors and managers are first aid trained and are prepared to 
deal with overdose situations effectively. Plus we have recently taken part in a seminar with Loop Collective with other 
venue operators and promoters about drug abuse in night clubs, from which we have obtained and displayed in venue a 
lot of documentation regarding the different types of drugs, their effects and their potential for harm.  
Dispersion:  
Gradual dispersal will be encouraged in the following ways.  
 
Calling last orders such that there is adequate “drinking-up time”. 
Staff encouraging customers to finish their drinks and prepare to leave in plenty of time. 
Adequate signage. Customers will be directed by staff and signage towards the main entrance at Cambridge Heath Rd. 
Sufficient staff (and door staff) will be present both at the entrance and inside the venue. At that point staff will encourage 
customers to disperse towards Cambridge Heath Station and the waiting transport options available as quickly and quietly 
as possible. 
Not to allow any drinks to be taken outside the building. 
If a group of customers are found to be loitering near the building then they will be politely 
asked to move on as quickly as possible. 
We will have local taxi numbers available and we also have a lot of night bus options about which door staff and managers 
are knowledgeable about. We will allow people to charge their phone should they have insufficient battery to call an Uber/Page 29



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Bolt etc. 
 

Section 4 of 9

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

State the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises
(see also guidance on completing the form, note 6):

The sale by retail of alcohol

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a 
member of the club

The provision of regulated entertainment (See also guidance on completing the form, 
note 7).

The provision of late night refreshment

The giving of a late temporary event notice Late notices can be given no later than 5 
working days but no earlier than 9 working 
days before the event.
(See also guidance on completing the form, 
note 8).

Event Dates 

There must be a period of at least 10 working days between the date you submit this form and the date of the earliest event 
when you will be using these premises for licensable activities. 
  
State the dates on which you intend to use these premises for licensable activities 

(see also guidance on completing the form, note 9)

Event start date 01 / 01 / 2023

 dd               mm             yyyy

The maximum period for using premises for 
licensable activities under the authority of a 
temporary event notice is 168 hours or seven 
days.

Event end date 01 / 01 / 2023

 dd               mm             yyyy

State the times during the 
event period that you propose 
to carry on licensable activities 
(give times in 24 hour clock) 
(see also guidance on 
completing the form, note 10)

00:00 - 06:00

State the maximum number 
of people at any one time that 
you intend to allow to be 
present at the premises 
during the times when you 
intend to carry on licensable 
activities, including any staff, 
organisers or performers
(see also guidance on 
completing the form, note 11)

220
Note that the maximum number of people 
cannot exceed 499.

Page 30



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the licensable activities will include the supply of alcohol, state whether the 
supplies will be for consumption on or off the premises, or both
(see also guidance on completing the form, note 12):

On the premises only

Off the premises only

Both

Section 5 of 9

RELEVANT ENTERTAINMENT (See also guidance on completing the form, note 13)

State if the licensable activities will include the provision of relevant entertainment. If so, state the times during the event 
period that you propose to provide relevant entertainment

Recorded and Live Music 

Section 6 of 9

PERSONAL LICENCE HOLDERS (See also guidance on completing the form, note 14)

Do you currently hold a valid 
personal licence?

Yes No

Provide the details of your personal licence below.

Issuing licensing authority Hackney 

Licence number PERS/2021/0106

Date of issue 21 / 07 / 2021

 dd               mm             yyyy

Any further relevant details

Section 7 of 9

PREVIOUS TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 15)

Have you previously given a 
temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises for 
events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for 
which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice?

Yes No

Page 31



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Have you already given a 
temporary event notice for 
the same premises in which 
the event period:   
       a) Ends 24 hours or 
            less before; or  
       b) Begins 24 hours or less 
            after the event period   
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Section 8 of 9

ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS COLLEAGUES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 16)

Has any associate of yours 
given a temporary event 
notice for an event in the 
same calendar year as the 
event for which you are now 
giving a temporary event 
notice? 

Yes No

Has any associate of yours 
already given a temporary 
event notice for the same 
premises in which the event 
period: 
       a) Ends 24 hours or 
            less before; or 
       b) Begins 24 hours or less  
            after the event period 
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Has any person with whom 
you are in business carrying 
on licensable activities given a 
temporary event notice for an 
event in the same calendar 
year as the event for which 
you are now giving a 
temporary event notice?

Yes No

Has any person with whom 
you are in business carrying 
on licensable activities 
already given a temporary 
event notice for the same 
premises in which the event 
period: 
       a) Ends 24 hours or less 
            before; or 
       b) Begins 24 hours or less 
            after the event period 
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Page 32



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 9 of 9

CONDITION (See also guidance on completing the form, note 18)

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described in Sections 4 and 5  
above include the supply of alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user.  
PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

This formality requires a fixed fee of £21

DECLARATION (See also guidance on completing the form, note 19)
1

* 

(i) to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable 
activity to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of 
any amount, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six (6) months, or to both.

1

* ................... For completion by the Licensing Authority ....................
1

* .......... I acknowledge receipt of this temporary event notice ..........
1

* 
SIGNATURE____________________________ On behalf of the Licensing Authority NAME OF OFFICER 
____________________________________________________ DATE _________________________________

1

* 

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name Harry Follett

* Capacity Venue Manager 

* Date 06 / 12 / 2022

 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/temporary-event-notice/tower-hamlets/apply-1 to upload this file 
and continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

Page 33

https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/temporary-event-notice/tower-hamlets/apply-1


© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number Space 289 In-house NYE Party 

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Next >

Page 34



Appendix 2 
             

        
 

         
 
 
 
 

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



      Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See the attached licence for the licence conditions 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed by    David Tolley
Head of Trading Standards & Environmental Health 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 3rd August 2017 
 
 

 
(Space 289) 
Railway Arch 
289 Cambridge Heath Road 
London 
E2 0EL 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of late night refreshment (Indoors only) 
The provision of regulated entertainment consisting of Plays, Films. Live 
Music, Recorded Music and performance of Dance 
 

Page 39



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
2 

 

Part A - Format of premises licence 

 

Premises licence number 29359 
  

Part 1 - Premises details  
  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  
 
Railway Arch 
289 Cambridge Heath Road 
 

Post town  
 

London 

Post code  
 

E2 0EL 
 

Telephone number  
 

  
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
 
N/A 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of late night refreshment (Indoors only) 
The provision of regulated entertainment consisting of Plays, Films. Live Music, Recorded 
Music and performance of Dance 
 

Page 40



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
3 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Sale of Alcohol: 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hours to 01:00 hours 
Regulated Entertainment consisting of Plays, Films. Live Music, Recorded Music and 
performance of Dance 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hours  to 01:00 hours 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hours to 01.30 hours 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
 
On sales only 
 

 
  

Page 41



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
4 

Part 2  
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence  
 
Yiannis Hadjipetrou 
95 Cumbrian Gardens 
London 
NW2 1EH 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
Not applicable 

 
Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
 
 
Yiannis Hadjipetrou 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
Licence No. AU0534 
Issuing Authority: Cyngor Gwynedd 
   

Page 42



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
5 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 
 
a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his personal licence is suspended 
 
 
1.  

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises 
 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises; 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to— 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 

alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 
on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the 
effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of disability 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request 
to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 

Page 43



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
6 

3.  
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either— 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

 
4. The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been 
made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) 
it is available to customers in the following measures— 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint  
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 
quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 
 

5. 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— 
 

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 
 

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula — 
                             P = D + (D x V)  
where — 
 

(i) P is the permitted price 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

Page 44



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
7 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a premises licence 

(i) the holder of the premises licence 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of 

alcohol under such a licence 
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present 
on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 
prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994 
 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart 
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that 
sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 

4.  (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) 
of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to 
the rate of duty or value added tax 
 

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day 

 
 

Security: 
 
Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more 
individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, such individuals must 
be licensed with the Security Industry Authority. 
This does not apply to premises within paragraph. 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private 
Security Industry Act 2001, (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or 
in respect of premises in relation to- 
any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of Schedule 2 (premises being used 
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice 
authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or  

Page 45



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
8 

any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of Schedule 2 (occasions prescribed by regulations 
under that Act) unless the Licence specifically states otherwise. 
 
Security activity means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 of the Private 
Security Industry Act 2001 of that schedule applies, and 
Paragraph 8(5) of  Schedule 2 (interpreting of references to an occasion) applies as it 
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of Schedule 2 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001  
 
Films: 
 
Where the exhibition of films is authorised, the admission of children to the exhibition of 
any film must be to be restricted as follows:  If the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Licensing Section has issued a particular notification of restriction to the licence holder, 
that restriction must be adhered. Otherwise the recommendation of the film classification 
body must be followed.  Children means persons aged under 18 and “film classification 
body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the 
Video Recordings Act 1984 (currently the British Board of Film Classification) 
 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None 
 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
1. All incidences of crime and disorder shall be reported to police. 
 
2. An incident book shall be used to record all instances of public disorder and incidents 

at the premises. 
 
3. In the event of complaints of noise being received and substantiated by the council's 

noise officers, the licensee shall cease the activity of live music and appoint a noise 
consultant registered with the Institute of Acoustics or Association of Noise 
Consultants to prepare a scheme of further sound insulation and noise control 
measures, which may include the recalibration of the noise limiting device, to prevent 
persons in the neighbourhood from being unreasonably disturbed by noise of music, 
including live music, and amplified or raised voices coming from the premises. 

 
4. The scheme shall be submitted for approval by the Council, and the approved scheme 

fully implemented to the satisfaction of the Council and the licensee notified in writing 
accordingly, before live music and dancing can resume at the premises. 

 

Page 46



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
9 

5. Where a noise limiting device is installed, the system must be set by the appointed 
noise consultant to maximum music noise levels approved by, and in conjunction with, 
the Council's Pollution Team. 

 
6. No drinking shall be permitted outside. 
 
7. Doors and windows to the premises will be kept closed, so far as practicable, at all 

times when noise generating regulated entertainment is taking place i.e. live and 
recorded music. 

 
8. A dedicated licensed taxi/minicab service shall be available with the premises for 

customers. 
 
9. Bottling out from the premises is prohibited between 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours. 
 
10. Refuse such as bottles must be placed into receptacles outside the premises at times 

that will minimise the disturbance to nearby properties. 
 
11. The contact telephone number for the premises duty manager shall be displayed 

inside the premises or immediately outside the premises such that it is clearly visible 
from outside without the need to enter the premises. 

 
12. The licensee shall ensure that all staff, including Door Supervisors if required, shall be 

trained to carry out these tasks and to facilitate effective crowd dispersal at the end of 
any given evening, and ensure that they have signed a staff record form to verify that 
they have been trained in these process. 

 
13. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, 
such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

 
14. The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained about age restricted products and 

ensure that they sign to confirm that they have understood the training. The licensee 
shall keep records of training and instruction given to staff. 

 
15. The premises will display and maintain appropriate signage advising customers of the 

contact details of the Designated Premises Supervisor. 
 
16. All staff will be given refresher training every twelve months on the legislation relating 

to the sales of alcohol to underage persons and drunken persons. 
 
17. Written records of this training shall be kept on the premises and produced to police 

or other authorised officer upon request. 
 
18. The DPS should regularly monitor staff to check how they are dealing with young 

people who ask for alcohol and other age restricted products. 

Page 47



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
10 

 
19. No Music or Amplified Sound shall be generated on the premises to give rise to a 

nuisance to neighbouring residents. 
 
20. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premise 

building. 
 
21. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours, or at any time 

when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access & egress 
of persons. 

 
22. On Friday and Saturday evenings there shall be a minimum of two SIA registered door 

supervisors from 9 pm until 01.30 a.m. 
 

23. Limit the amount of smokers outside after 21:00 hours to 10 people. 
 
24. The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and any recordings shall be 

retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 31 days. A 
system shall be in place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete 
audit trail maintained. The system will comply with other essential legislation, and all 
signs as required will be clearly displayed. The system will be maintained and fully 
operational throughout the hours that the premises are open for any licensable 
activity. There must also be someone on the premises, who can download the images 
and present them on request by a police officer or other responsible authority. One 
camera be placed outside the entrance and on entry. 

 
25. Hot food is not permitted to be sold or consumed off premises at any time.  
 
26. The premises shall not operate as a take away save for a bona fide online delivery 

service during normal hours.  
 
27. The Servery at the premises will not be operational to customers from Cambridge 

Heath Road.  
 

28. The premises must have an effective scanner. 
 

 
Annex 4 - Plans  
 
The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date: 
 
3rd August 2017 Drwg No: 1319-100 Dated May17 (ground & mezzanine) 
 

Page 48



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
11 

Page 49



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
12 

 
 

Part B - Premises licence summary 

 
Premises licence number 29359 

 
Premises details 

 Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  
 
Railway Arch 
289 Cambridge Heath Road 
 

Post town  
 

London 
 

Post code  
 

E2 0EL 
 

Telephone number  

  
 

 
Where the licence is time limited the 
dates 

 

N/A 

  
Licensable activities authorised by the 
licence  

 

The sale by retail of alcohol 
The provision of late night refreshment 
(Indoors only) 
The provision of regulated entertainment 
consisting of Plays, Films. Live Music, 
Recorded Music and performance of Dance 
 

Licensing Act 2003 

Page 50



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\CambridgeHeathRd.Arch289.doc  
13 

 
  
The times the licence authorises the 
carrying out of licensable activities 

Sale of Alcohol: 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hrs to 01:00 hrs 
Regulated Entertainment consisting of Plays, 
Films. Live Music, Recorded Music and 
performance of Dance 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hrs  to 01:00 hrs 
 

   

The opening hours of the premises 
 

Sunday to Thursday 11:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 hrs to 01.30 hrs 
 

 
Name, (registered) address  of holder of 
premises licence 

Yiannis Hadjipetrou 
95 Cumbrian Gardens 
London 
NW2 1EH 
 

  
Where the licence authorises supplies of 
alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies 

 

On sales only 
 

  
Registered number of holder, for example 
company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 

 

Not applicable 

  
Name of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol 

 

Yiannis Hadjipetrou 

  

  

State whether access to the premises by 
children is restricted or prohibited 

 

No restrictions 
 

 

Page 51



      Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



1

Kathy Driver

From: Nicola Cadzow
Sent: 07 December 2022 16:13
To: Licensin
Cc:
Subject: MAU REPRESENTATION TEN 155639 Space 289 Railway Arch, 289 Cambridge Heath 

Road, London

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Licensing,  
 
I have regarded the application for the TENs application for Space 289 Railway Arch, 289 Cambridge Heath Road, 
London and the potential impact of public nuisance and measures to prevent noise generated from within the 
premises or outside it which could cause disturbance to people in the vicinity. 
 
The applicant is proposing: 
 

 the provision of regulated entertainment  
 supply of alcohol                                                  
 
extension from midnight until 6am, news year’s eve into new year’s day. 
 

Sensitive premises:  Residential and commercial premises in close  approximately to Railway Arch, 289 Cambridge 
Heath Road, London 
 
In my view the application, as it stands fails, to comply with the objective of the Licensing Act 2003 relating to “public 
nuisance” for the following reasons:- 
 

    Noise breakout from the venue affecting neighbouring residents. 
 Access & egress to and from the venue, of patrons, especially due to patrons likely to be in high spirits; and 
 The hours of operation (inclusive of proposals) 

 
 
CONCLUSION 

 
Environmental Protection does not support the TENs application for Space 289 Railway Arch, 289 Cambridge Heath 
Road, London, as there is great likelihood of disturbance to residential premises at the noise sensitive hours sought. 
But I am willing to withdraw my objection if the applicant agrees to reduce their operating hours to all licensable 
activities (regulated entertainment & sale by retail of alcohol) to finish at 02:30am, premises close by 3am. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Nicola Cadzow 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Protection Team 
Place Directorate 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Mulberry Place Town Hall 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 

Page 53



2

020 7364 6394 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 
Follow us on:. 
Facebook | Twitter | Linkedin | Instagram 
 
Please note: all s61 consents, dispensations and variations must be sent to 
environmental.protection@towerhamlets.gov.uk  for logging and allocation. 
 

Click here to see the Tower Hamlets Noise map:   
 

 

 
 

Page 54



Committee : 

 
Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Date  
 
 

Classification 

 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of David Tolley 
Head of Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

 
Originating Officer:  
Kathy Driver 
Principal Licensing Officer 

 

Title:  Licensing Act 2003 Temporary Event Notice for Suvlaki 
– shoreditch, 161 Brick Lane, London E1 6SB 
 
 

Ward affected:Weavers 

 

 
 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant:                                  Mr. Ismail Yalgi              

 
Address of Premises:    Suvlaki – Shoreditch 
 161 Brick Lane 
 London E1 6SB 
                                      
  
                                     
 
Objectors:     Metropolitan Police 
 
 
 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   

Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 
register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

Licensing Act 2003 Section 182 Guidance 
Licensing Policy 
File Only 
 

 Kathy Driver 
020 7364 5171 
 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 3.2



3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a Standard Temporary Event Notice.  
 
3.2 Enclosed is a copy of the application. (See Appendix 1). 
 
3.3 The applicant has described the nature of the application as follows: 

Late Night Refreshment for restaurant and take away. 
 
3.4 The Notice was given on 8th December 2022 and the Responsible 

Authorities were notified of the Temporary Event Notice on 9th December 
2022. 
 

3.5 The premises that has been applied for is: 161 Brick Lane, London E1 
6SB 

 
3.6 The dates that have been applied for are as follows:  

27th to 31st December 2022 
 
3.7 The times that have been applied for are as follows: 

Monday to Wednesday from 23:00 hours to 03:00 hours 
Thursday to Saturday from 23:00 hours to 04:00 hours 

 
3.8 A map showing the relevant premises and immediate area is included as 

Appendix 2. 
 
 

4.0 Premises Licence 
 

4.1 The venue has no premises licence in place, however the applicant has 
applied for a premises licence of which the consultation date expired on 
8th December 2022.  Objections have been received by Environmental 
Health and Police and is awaiting hearing. They have applied for late 
night refreshment for the hours of: Monday to Wednesday until 3am, 
Thursday to Saturday until 4am and Sunday until midnight. 
 

5.0 Temporary Event Notices 
 
5.1 Temporary Event Notices (TENs) are a creation of the Licensing Act 

2003. They provide a method by which licensable activities can be 
carried out on a temporary basis (max. 168 hrs) without a licence. The 
maximum number that can attend at any one time is 499. At least 10 full 
working days notice must be given to the licensing authority. When a 
TEN cannot be obtained, for example the event is over 499, then a full 
premises licence must be obtained, for a limited duration. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Authority cannot oppose an application, (nor can local 

residents or businesses. The Licensing Authority must reject any 
application that does not meet the rules as to numbers, maximum per 
year etc. The limits for 2022 and 2023 are as follows: 20 TEN per 

Page 56



calendar year or 26 days. The Responsible Authorities that can object is 
the Metropolitan Police or Environmental Protection.  

 
 

5.3 The Police and Environmental Protection can object on the grounds that 
allowing the event to go ahead will undermine one of the Licensing 
Objectives. 

5.4 At any time before a hearing is held or dispensed, the premises user and 
EH or Police may come to an agreement and modify the temporary event 
notice by making changes to it. 

 
5.5 Following an objection by the relevant Responsible Authority the 

Licensing Authority must decide whether; 
 
(1) Grant the TEN;  
 
(2) Grant the TEN with conditions (if a premises licence is in place) 

and specify conditions as appropriate to the TEN. 
 

(3) Refuse the TEN by serving a Counter Notice  
 
5.6 The Licensing Authority can apply one or more conditions ; 

(a)  if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to do so,  

(b) the conditions are also imposed on a premises licence or club 
premises certificate that has effect in respect of the same 
premises, or any part of the same premises, as the temporary 
event notice, and  

(c) the conditions would not be inconsistent with the carrying out of 
the licensable activities under the temporary event notice. 
 
 

5.7 Where the authority decides to impose one or more conditions; 
(a) the authority must give the premises user notice of the decision; 
 
(b) the notice must be accompanied by a separate statement (the 

“statement of conditions”) which sets out the conditions that 
have been imposed on the temporary event notice; and  
 

(c) a copy of the notice and statement of conditions must be given 
to each relevant party. 

 
 
5.8 LATE TENs have been created through the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibilities Act 2011, a Late TEN can be made no later than FIVE 
working days and no earlier than NINE working days before the event.  
The limits to these applications are no more than 2 for a non personal 
licence holder or no more than 10 for a personal licence holder.  

 

Page 57



5.9 The Police and Environmental Protection can object to Late TENs, if an 
objection is made the Licensing Authority must issue a counter notice 
advising the event cannot take place.  

 
6.0 Objections 
 
6.1 The Police objections are contained in Appendix 3. 

 
 
7.0 Advice to Members 
 
7.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended 

legislation whereby Environmental Protection alongside Police can 
object to Temporary Event Notice under any of the licensing objectives.  
 

7.2 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003. As always the 
decision is on the civil burden of proof, i.e. the balance of probability.  

 
7.3 Members can consider any of the licensing objectives. Other matters can 

also be dealt with elsewhere by primary legislation. 
 

7.4 Premises users are not required to be on the premises for the entire 
duration of the event authorised by the TEN, but they will remain liable to 
prosecution for certain offences that may be committed at the premises 
during the period covered by it. These include, for example, the offences 
of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling 
alcohol to children; and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed 
premises. 

 
7.5 The police or local authority exercising environmental health functions 

may contact the premises user to discuss their objections and try to 
come to an agreement which will allow the proposed licensable activities 
to proceed. The TEN can be modified. If there is no agreement, the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the notice. 

  
   
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
  

Page 58



10.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 A copy of the application 
 
Appendix 2  Maps of the area 
 
Appendix 3 Police Objection 
  
 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Appendix 2 
             

        
 

         
 
 
 
 

Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



      Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



1

Kathy Driver

From: MARK.J.Perry@met.police.uk
Sent: 12 December 2022 10:14
To:
Cc:
Subject: Objection TENS Application - 161 Brick Lane 27 to 31 December 2022
Attachments: BrickLane161.27-31_12_22.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

 
Dear Naim, and Tower Hamlets Council Licensing, 
 
Central East Police Licensing formally object to the Late Temporary Event Notice application for 161 Brick Lane on 
the 27 to 31 December 2022, open until 3am Monday to Wednesday and 4am Thursday to Saturday.  
 
We object on both the grounds of preventing crime and disorder and public nuisance. Having a restaurant and 
Takeaway operate in Brick Lane until 3am and 4 am will we believe lead to crime and disorder and public nuisance 
as most of the customers attending will be those who have been drinking and partying during the Christmas Party 
Season. These drunken customers are much more likely to have impaired decision making process’s and be the 
victims of or perpetrators of alcohol related crime and disorder. 
 
Intoxicated customers are also likely to have raised voices and cause nuisance as they either queue to get food or 
congregate outside. Drunk customers are also less sensitive to local residents and more likely to cause noise 
nuisance. 
 
We therefore ask that this late TEN is rejected. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Mark 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
PC Mark Perry 
Central East Licensing Unit 
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 

Email  
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station 
 

 
 

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee : 

 
Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Date  
 
 

Classification 

 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of David Tolley 
Head of Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

 
Originating Officer:  
Kathy Driver 
Principal Licensing Officer 

 

Title:  Licensing Act 2003 Temporary Event Notice for Suvlaki 
– shoreditch, 161 Brick Lane, London E1 6SB 
 
 

Ward affected:Weavers 

 

 
 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant:                                  Mr. Ismail Yalgi              

 
Address of Premises:    Suvlaki – Shoreditch 
 161 Brick Lane 
 London E1 6SB 
                                      
  
                                     
 
Objectors:     Metropolitan Police 

 Environmental Health 
 
 
 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   

Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 
register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

Licensing Act 2003 Section 182 Guidance 
Licensing Policy 
File Only 
 

 Kathy Driver 
020 7364 5171 
 

 

Page 77



3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a Standard Temporary Event Notice.  
 
3.2 Enclosed is a copy of the application. (See Appendix 1). 
 
3.3 The applicant has described the nature of the application as follows: 

Late Night Refreshment for restaurant and take away. 
 
3.4 The Notice was given on 8th December 2022 and the Responsible 

Authorities were notified of the Temporary Event Notice on 9th December 
2022. 
 

3.5 The premises that has been applied for is: 161 Brick Lane, London E1 
6SB 

 
3.6 The dates that have been applied for are as follows:  

27th to 31st December 2022 
 
3.7 The times that have been applied for are as follows: 

Monday to Wednesday from 23:00 hours to 03:00 hours 
Thursday to Saturday from 23:00 hours to 04:00 hours 

 
3.8 A map showing the relevant premises and immediate area is included as 

Appendix 2. 
 
 

4.0 Premises Licence 
 

4.1 The venue has no premises licence in place, however the applicant has 
applied for a premises licence of which the consultation date expired on 
8th December 2022.  Objections have been received by Environmental 
Health and Police and is awaiting hearing. They have applied for late 
night refreshment for the hours of: Monday to Wednesday until 3am, 
Thursday to Saturday until 4am and Sunday until midnight. 
 

5.0 Temporary Event Notices 
 
5.1 Temporary Event Notices (TENs) are a creation of the Licensing Act 

2003. They provide a method by which licensable activities can be 
carried out on a temporary basis (max. 168 hrs) without a licence. The 
maximum number that can attend at any one time is 499. At least 10 full 
working days notice must be given to the licensing authority. When a 
TEN cannot be obtained, for example the event is over 499, then a full 
premises licence must be obtained, for a limited duration. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Authority cannot oppose an application, (nor can local 

residents or businesses. The Licensing Authority must reject any 
application that does not meet the rules as to numbers, maximum per 
year etc. The limits for 2022 and 2023 are as follows: 20 TEN per 

Page 78



calendar year or 26 days. The Responsible Authorities that can object is 
the Metropolitan Police or Environmental Protection.  

 
 

5.3 The Police and Environmental Protection can object on the grounds that 
allowing the event to go ahead will undermine one of the Licensing 
Objectives. 

5.4 At any time before a hearing is held or dispensed, the premises user and 
EH or Police may come to an agreement and modify the temporary event 
notice by making changes to it. 

 
5.5 Following an objection by the relevant Responsible Authority the 

Licensing Authority must decide whether; 
 
(1) Grant the TEN;  
 
(2) Grant the TEN with conditions (if a premises licence is in place) 

and specify conditions as appropriate to the TEN. 
 

(3) Refuse the TEN by serving a Counter Notice  
 
5.6 The Licensing Authority can apply one or more conditions ; 

(a)  if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives to do so,  

(b) the conditions are also imposed on a premises licence or club 
premises certificate that has effect in respect of the same 
premises, or any part of the same premises, as the temporary 
event notice, and  

(c) the conditions would not be inconsistent with the carrying out of 
the licensable activities under the temporary event notice. 
 
 

5.7 Where the authority decides to impose one or more conditions; 
(a) the authority must give the premises user notice of the decision; 
 
(b) the notice must be accompanied by a separate statement (the 

“statement of conditions”) which sets out the conditions that 
have been imposed on the temporary event notice; and  
 

(c) a copy of the notice and statement of conditions must be given 
to each relevant party. 

 
 
5.8 LATE TENs have been created through the Police Reform and Social 

Responsibilities Act 2011, a Late TEN can be made no later than FIVE 
working days and no earlier than NINE working days before the event.  
The limits to these applications are no more than 2 for a non personal 
licence holder or no more than 10 for a personal licence holder.  

 

Page 79



5.9 The Police and Environmental Protection can object to Late TENs, if an 
objection is made the Licensing Authority must issue a counter notice 
advising the event cannot take place.  

 
6.0 Objections 
 
6.1 The Police objections are contained in Appendix 3. 

 
6.2 Environmental Health objection is in Appendix 4.  

 
 
7.0 Advice to Members 
 
7.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended 

legislation whereby Environmental Protection alongside Police can 
object to Temporary Event Notice under any of the licensing objectives.  
 

7.2 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003. As always the 
decision is on the civil burden of proof, i.e. the balance of probability.  

 
7.3 Members can consider any of the licensing objectives. Other matters can 

also be dealt with elsewhere by primary legislation. 
 

7.4 Premises users are not required to be on the premises for the entire 
duration of the event authorised by the TEN, but they will remain liable to 
prosecution for certain offences that may be committed at the premises 
during the period covered by it. These include, for example, the offences 
of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling 
alcohol to children; and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed 
premises. 

 
7.5 The police or local authority exercising environmental health functions 

may contact the premises user to discuss their objections and try to 
come to an agreement which will allow the proposed licensable activities 
to proceed. The TEN can be modified. If there is no agreement, the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the notice. 

  
   
8.0 Legal Comments 
 
8.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
 
9.0 Finance Comments 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
  

Page 80



10.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 A copy of the application 
 
Appendix 2  Maps of the area 
 
Appendix 3 Police Objection 
 
Appendix 4 Environmental Health objection 
  
 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Appendix 2 
             

        
 

         
 
 
 
 

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



      Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



1

Kathy Driver

From: MARK.J.Perry@met.police.uk
Sent: 12 December 2022 10:14
To:
Cc:
Subject: Objection TENS Application - 161 Brick Lane 27 to 31 December 2022
Attachments: BrickLane161.27-31_12_22.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

 
Dear Naim, and Tower Hamlets Council Licensing, 
 
Central East Police Licensing formally object to the Late Temporary Event Notice application for 161 Brick Lane on 
the 27 to 31 December 2022, open until 3am Monday to Wednesday and 4am Thursday to Saturday.  
 
We object on both the grounds of preventing crime and disorder and public nuisance. Having a restaurant and 
Takeaway operate in Brick Lane until 3am and 4 am will we believe lead to crime and disorder and public nuisance 
as most of the customers attending will be those who have been drinking and partying during the Christmas Party 
Season. These drunken customers are much more likely to have impaired decision making process’s and be the 
victims of or perpetrators of alcohol related crime and disorder. 
 
Intoxicated customers are also likely to have raised voices and cause nuisance as they either queue to get food or 
congregate outside. Drunk customers are also less sensitive to local residents and more likely to cause noise 
nuisance. 
 
We therefore ask that this late TEN is rejected. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Mark 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
PC Mark Perry 
Central East Licensing Unit 
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 

Email  
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station 
 

 
 

 

Page 97



      Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



1

Kathy Driver

From: Nicola Cadzow
Sent: 13 December 2022 14:11
To: Licensin
Cc:
Subject: 155764 MAU REPRESENTATION TENs for Suvlaki 161 Brick Lane, London

Dear Licensing, 
 
I have considered  the TENs  application for Suvlaki 161 Brick Lane, London and the the impact of the 
licensing objectives, particular for Environmental Protection the prevention of public nuisance and the 
prevention of  noise generated from within the premises or outside, to be causing disturbance to people in 
the vicinity at the late hours sought.  Also consideration has be given to the fact that the premise is in Brick 
Lane Cumulative Impact Zone. 
 
 
The applicant is proposing licensable activity: late night refreshment from 27th December 22 to 31st 
December 2022   
              

 Monday to Wednesday from 23:00 hours to 03:00 hours in the morning  
 Thursday Friday and Saturday from 23:00 hours until 04:00 hours in the morning 

 
 
Noise Sensitive premises:   residential premises in close proximity to 161 Brick Lane, London. 
 
In my view the application, as it stands fails, to comply with the objective of the Licensing Act 2003 relating 
to “public nuisance” for the following reasons:- 
 

     Noise breakout from the venue affecting neighbouring residents. 
 Access & egress to and from the venue, of patrons, especially due to patrons likely to be in high spirits; and 
 The hours of operation (inclusive of proposals) 

 
   
CONCLUSION 
 
Environmental Protection does not support the TENs application for Suvlaki 161 Brick Lane, London for the 
following reasons: 
 

(1) Great likelihood of disturbance to residential premises at the noise sensitive hours sought. 
(2) The premises is in Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone. 

 
 
Kind regards 
 
Nicola Cadzow 
Environmental Protection Team  
Place Directorate 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Mulberry Place Town Hall 

Page 99



2

5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 
0207 364 6394  
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
Follow us on: 
Facebook | Twitter | Linkedin | Instagram 
 

Page 100



 
Committee : 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date  
 
 

Classification 

 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

 

Report of: David Tolley 

Head of Environmental Health & Trading 
Standards 
 
Originating Officer:  

Mohshin Ali 
Senior Licensing Officer 

 

Title:  Licensing Act 2003  
Application for a Premises Licence for (Jack the 
Chipper) 96 Whitechapel High Street, London E1 7RA 
 
Ward affected:  
Spitalfields and Banglatown 

 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant: Recep Turhan 
 
Name and  Jack the Chipper 
 
Address of Premises: 96 Whitechapel High Street 
 London 
 E1 7RA 
       
Licence sought: Licensing Act 2003 – premises licence 

 The sale by retail of alcohol (on sales 
only) 

 The provision of late night refreshment 
 
Representations: Licensing Authority (RA) 
  Resident’s Association 
    

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and 

representations then adjudicate accordingly. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

 

 Guidance Issued under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003  

 Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 

 File  
 

  
Mohshin Ali 
020 7364  5498 

Page 101

Agenda Item 3.3



3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This is an application for a premises licence for (Jack the Chipper) 96 

Whitechapel High Street, London E1 7RA.  
 

3.2 The applicant has described the premises as: 
“Restaurant providing on-sale alcohol only with substantial meal to 
seated customers”. 

 
3.3 The previous business (Fine Catering Ltd) has an existing licence for the 

ground floor only with following timings: 
The provision of late night refreshment -  indoors  

 Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 hours to 23:15 hours  

 Friday to Saturday, from 23:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following 
day  

 
Non-standard timings 

 Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve, from 23:00 hours to 02:00 
hours the following day 

 
The opening hours of the premises 

 

 Sunday to Thursday from 08:00 hours to 23:45 hours  

 Friday to Saturday, from 08:00 hours to 01:00 hours the following 
day  

 
Non-standard timings 

 Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve, from 08:00 hours to 02:00 hours 
the following day 

 
3.4 A copy of the new premises licence application form is enclosed as 

Appendix 1. The licensable activities and timings that have been 
applied for the the basement, ground and first floor as follows: 

 
The sale of by retail of alcohol (on sales only) 

 Monday to Saturday, from 11:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs  

 Sunday, from 11:00 hrs to 22:30 hrs 
 
Non-standard timings for the sale of by retail of alcohol  

 New years eve, from 11:00 hrs to 00:30 the following day 
 
The provision of late night refreshment - Indoors 

 Monday to Saturday, from 23:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs  

 (Sunday, no late night refreshment) 
 

The opening hours of the premises 

 Monday to Saturday, from 07:00 hrs to 00:00 hrs (midnight)  

 Sunday, from 07:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs 
 
Non-standard timings 

 New years eve, from 11:00 hrs to 01:00 the following day 

Page 102



 
LICENSING OFFICER’S COMMENT: It should be noted that for New Year’s 
Eve, the applicant has applied to only extend the sale of alcohol but not for 
the provision of late night refreshment (hot food and hot drinks). 
 
4.0 Location and Nature of the premises 

 
4.1 The site plan of the venue is included as Appendix 2.  

 
4.2 Maps and photos showing the vicinity are included as Appendix 3.   

 
4.3 Details of the nearest licensed venues are included as Appendix 4.  
 
5.0 Licensing Policy and Government Advice 
 
5.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from the 

Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The revised policy came into 
effect on the 1st November 2018. 

 
5.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members 

within the Licensing Officers report.  
 
5.3 The Home Secretary has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. This is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in April 2018. 

 
5.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention within 

the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, than in 
some areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of local 
circumstances, has not followed the Government’s advice, or has 
developed it further. 

 
6.0 Representations 
 

6.1 All representations have to meet basic legal and administrative 
requirements. If they fail to do so they cannot be accepted. When 
rejected the person sending in the representation must be written to, and 
an explanation for rejection given in writing 

 

6.2 A responsible authority or other person can make a representation. 
There are two tests for other persons and only one for a responsible 
authority. The two tests are contained in Section 18 of the Act. 

 

6.3 All representations must be “about the likely effect of the grant of the 
premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.” Likely 
means something that will probably happen, i.e. on balance more likely 
than not. 

 

6.4 Representations by responsible authorities do not have to meet the 
second test of not being vexatious and frivolous. Other persons have to 
meet this test. 

 

Page 103

http://www.culture.gov.uk/


6.5 The Home Office recommends that in borderline cases, the benefit of the 
doubt should be given to the interested party making the representation. 

 

6.6 Section 182 Advice by the Home Office concerning relevant, vexatious 
and frivolous representations is attached as Appendix 15. 

 

6.7 All the representations in this report have been considered by the 
relevant officer (Team Leader Licensing & Safety) and determined to 
have met the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 

6.8 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant 
representations have been made by the following: 

 

    Licensing Authority (acting as a Responsible Authority)  
(See Appendix 5). 

 

    Resident’s Association 
(See Appendix 6). 

 
6.9 Since the representations were made, there has been some 

communication between the applicant and the objectors. At the time of 
writing this report, they did not reach an agreement. 
 

6.10 All of the responsible authorities have been consulted about this 
application. They are as follows: 

 The Licensing Authority 

 The Metropolitan Police 

 The LFEPA (the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority). 

 Planning 

 Health and Safety 

 Environmental Protection (Noise) 

 Trading Standards 

 Child Protection 

 Public Health 

 Home Secretary (Home Office Immigration Enforcement) 
 

6.11 In addition the application was required to be advertised in a local 
newspaper and by a blue poster. Only representations that relate to the 
following licensing objectives are relevant: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm  
 

6.12 Essentially, the relevant parties oppose the application because in their 
opinion, the applicant has not explained how within the context of the 
application they will meet the licensing objective of the prevention of 
crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance. 

 

Page 104



6.13 There are strict time limits to any representations. The time limits are 
contained in The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club 
premises certificates) Regulations 2005.  
 

6.14 The applicant has offered measures in the operating schedule of the 
application that address the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. If 
there were no representations, the Licensing Authority would grant the 
licence, with conditions consistent with the operating schedule, which 
are relevant, proportionate and enforceable. Members are asked to 
consider the schedule and incorporate any conditions as necessary to 
address the licensing objectives.  

 
7.0 Conditions consistent with Operating Schedule (offered by the 

applicant) 
 
7.1 Alcohol shall only be sold and served to seated customers with a meal. 

 
7.2 There will be a maximum of 4 people at any one time in the designated 

area at the front of the premises for smoking purposes. This will be 
monitored by staff. 

 
7.3 The Licence holder shall ensure that a CCTV system is installed at the 

premises of a standard acceptable to the metropolitan police.  
 

a) The system shall be maintained in good working order and fully 
operational covering all internal licensable areas of the premises to 
which the public have access.  

 
b) All entry and exit points shall be covered enabling frontal 

identification (full head and shoulders images) of every person 
entering the premises in any light condition to an evidential 
standard. 

 
c) Management and permanent members of staff will be trained in the 

operation of the system with at least one member of this CCTV 
competent staff on duty each day. 

 
d) The CCTV system will have the capability to either download 

footage onto disc or memory stick.  
 

e) The footage on the CCTV system will be retained for a minimum 
period of 31 days before rewriting itself with correct date and time 
showing.  

 
f) The footage shall be made available to police or local authority 

officers upon request. 
 

g) If the CCTV system is broken the Licence holder get the fault 
rectified as soon as practicable.  

 

Page 105



h) The Licence holder shall ensure that a log is kept with details of the 
dates of all work/repairs carried out on the CCTV system including 
the name and phone number of the engineer. 

 
i) The installation or upgrading of any CCTV system shall comply with 

current best practice. 
 
7.4 There shall be “CCTV in Operation” signs prominently displayed at the 

premises. 
 

7.5 An incident book shall be kept and maintained at the premises and shall 
be made available for inspection by police and council officers upon 
request. 

 
7.6 A training log is to be kept for all staff members, in which staff sign that 

they have received the relevant training especially regarding the 
licensing objectives and Licensing Act 2003.  

 
a) In particular, the staff training shall include a section in relation to 

underage sales to ensure all staff is fully briefed.  
 

b) Staff shall be briefed on current recognised proof of age schemes 
and other forms of identification deemed to be acceptable as proof 
of age.  

 
c) Staff training shall emphasise drug awareness and vigilance in 

monitoring customer activity in and around the premises to 
minimize possiblecrime and disorder.  

 
d) Staff training includes steps to be taken to ensure the safety of 

customers in and around the perimeter of the premises, where 
applicable.  

 
e) Any new employee will be trained before starting the sale of 

alcohol.  
 

f) All staff training will be repeated every six months to ensure their 
knowledge is refreshed and kept up-to-date. All training will be 
recorded. 

 
7.7 A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol.  

a) The log will include the date and time of the refused sale and the 
name of the member of staff who refused the sale, and all staff will 
be trained in the use of the refusal book. 
 

b) The refusals book will be examined on a regular basis (at least 
weekly) by the licensee and date and time of each examination to 
be endorsed in the book.  

 

Page 106



c) Analysis of staff refusals and data such as the time/day of refusals 
to be carried out by the licensee on a regular basis in order to 
predict trends and identify staff training and compliance issues. 

 
d) The refusal / incident / training logs are to be kept on the licensed 

premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing 
Officer, Trading Standards or the Police. 

 
7.8 In an incident log we will record the following: 

a) all crimes reported to the venue 
b) any complaints received 
c) any incidents of disorderly conduct 
d) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment 
e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

7.9 Notice will be put up at the entrance/ exit to remind customers to leave 
quietly. 
 

7.10 Incident logbook will include any complaints, including nuisance related 
complaints. 

 
7.11 There will be no deliveries between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 to the 

premises. 
 

7.12 Any waste removed from the premises at close time will be done in 
consideration of the neighbours, in regard to noise and disturbance. 

 
7.13 Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the 

premises. 
 

7.14 A written dispersal policy shall be in place and implemented at the 
premises to disperse customers from the premises and the immediate 
vicinity in such a way as to cause minimum disturbance or nuisance to 
neighbours. 

 
7.15 Customers will be permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the 

premises e.g. to smoke, but shall not be permitted to take alcohol with 
them. 

 
7.16 No entertainment, performance, service, or exhibition involving nudity or 

sexual stimulation shall be permitted. 
 

7.17 The licence holder/DPS shall operate a strict Challenge 25 policy at the 
premises. Posters shall be displayed inside the venue informing 
customers. Examples of acceptable ID include: 
a) photo card driving licences 
b) passports or proof of age cards bearing the PASS hologram 
c) military ID cards 
d) other forms of ID which meet the criteria laid out above are also 

acceptable 
 

Page 107



7.18 Staff who work in this venue shall be made aware of the existence and 
content of the age verification policy. This will include NO ID NO SALE 

 
 
8.0 Conditions in consultation with the Responsible Authorities 

 
Conditions agreed in consultation with Environmental Protection 
(Appendix 7): 
 

8.1 Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, 
e.g. to smoke, shall be limited to 4 (four) persons at any one time. 
 

8.2 No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted 
through the structure of the premises, which gives rise to a public 
nuisance. 

 

9.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
9.1 The Business & Planning Act 2020 came into force on Wednesday 22nd 

July 2020 and provides a temporary permission for businesses that have 
a premises licence that permits them to sell alcohol in regards to the 
ability to sell alcohol as an off sale, i.e. for consumption off the premises. 
The permission will end on 30th September 2023 unless the legislation 
is changed by the Secretary of State. 
 
It will only apply to businesses that hold a Premises Licence up to 22nd 
July 2020 and that in the last 3 years preceding 22 July 2020 those 
licences have NOT: 

 had a premises licence application where permission for off sales 
was refused; 

 had a variation of a premises licence seeking permission for off 
sales refused 

 had a variation seeking to exclude off sales permission granted 

 had a premises licence varied or modified by a review hearing to 
exclude off sales. 
 

9.2 The new off-sales permission will permit off-sales to be made at a time 
when the licensed premises are open for the purposes of selling alcohol 
for consumption on the premises, subject to a cut off time of 11pm or the 
cut off time of the current licensed hours stated on the licence, 
whichever is earlier. Measures also temporarily suspend existing licence 
conditions in so far as they are inconsistent with the new off-sales 
permission. Further Guidance on this can be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-
alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill 
 

9.3 The Live Music Act removed licensing requirements for the following: 

 amplified live music and recorded music between 8am and 11pm 
before audiences of no more than 500 people on premises 
authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises; 
 

Page 108

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill


 unamplified live music between 8am and 11pm in all venues.  
 

 Further exemptions apply see Section 16.5-16.6 of Section 182 
Guidance. 
 

9.4 The following is intended simply to advise Members of the relevant 
aspects of the Boroughs Licensing Policy, guidance from the Secretary 
of State, legislation and good practice. Members may depart from the 
Council’s Licensing Policy and/or Government advice, provide they 
consider it appropriate to do so, and have clear reasons for their 
decision. 

 
9.5 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 

 As stated in the guidance it is “provided to licensing authorities in 
relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 2003 Act.”  It is 
a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent 
application and promoting fairness equal treatment and proportionality 
(1.7). 

 

 Also “as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this 
Guidance, they may depart from it if they have good reason to do so 
and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could give 
rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be 
a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness 
and merits of any decision taken.”  Therefore licensing authorities will 
need to give full reasons for their actions (1.9). 

 
 Also Members should note “A Licensing Authority may depart from its 

own policy if the individual circumstances of any case merit such a 
decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.” 
(1.12) 

 

 Also, “The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless 
its discretion has been exercised following receipt of relevant 
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all 
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing 
objectives.”  Therefore, conditions may not be imposed for the 
purpose other than promoting the licensing objectives and in some 
cases no additional conditions will be appropriate. (10.8)  

 
 Necessary conditions should emerge from a risk assessment by the 

applicant, which should then be reflected in the operating schedule 
(10.4).  

 

 The Guidance states: “Where there are objections to an application to 
extend the hours during which licensable activities are to be carried 
on and the licensing authority determines that this would undermine 
the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

Page 109



appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.”  
(10.14) 

 

 Mandatory conditions must be imposed (10.25) and censorship 
avoided (10.17). 

 

 The Guidance states: “It is still permitted to sell alcohol using 
promotions (as long as they are compatible with any other licensing 
condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should ensure 
that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. 
Detailed guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance 
document available on the Gov.uk website.” (10.58)  Also, “Licensing 
authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions 
promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club 
licences or club premises certificates in an area.” (10.21) 

  
9.6 The Licensing Act 2003 permits children of any age to be on the 

premises which primarily sells alcohol providing they are accompanied 
by an adult. It is not necessary to make this a condition. 

 
9.7 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof, that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
9.8 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation 

is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already 
adequately covered elsewhere. 

 
9.9 The Government has advised that conditions must be tailored to the 

individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events 
concerned. Conditions cannot seek to manage the behaviour of 
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence 
holder and their staff and standardised conditions should be avoided 
where they cannot be shown to be appropriate. (1.16/1.17)  

 
9.10 The Council’s Licensing Policy generally expects applicants to address 

the licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the relevant 
responsible authorities. 

 
9.11 In Appendices 8 - 15 Members are given general advice, and also have 

explanations of the Council’s Licensing Policy, Government advice and 
other legislation relating to the matters previously identified. 

 
10.0 Legal Comments 

 
10.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
11.0 Finance Comments 

 
11.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 

 

Page 110



 
12.0 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1      A copy of the application 
 

Appendix 2       Site Plan 
 
Appendix 3       Maps of the surrounding area 
 
Appendix 4       Other licensed venues in the area 
 
Appendix 5       Representation of Licensing Authority (RA)  
 
Appendix 6       Representation of Resident’s Association  
 
Appendix 7       Conditions agreed with Environmental Protection 

 
Appendix 8       Licensing Officer comments on noise while the  
                              premise is in use 
Appendix 9       Licensing Officer comments on access/egress  
                              Problems 
Appendix 10         Licensing Officer comments on crime and       
                              disorder on the premises 
Appendix 11         Licensing Officer comments on crime and disorder   
                              from patrons leaving the premises 
Appendix 12       Planning  
 
Appendix 13       Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading 
 
Appendix 14       Tower Hamlets Cumulative Impact Zone 
 
Appendix 15       Home Office concerning relevant, vexatious and  

      frivolous representations 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	2 RULES OF PROCEDURE
	Guidance for Licensing Sub

	3.1 Temporary Event Notice for Space 289, Railway Arch 289 Cambridge Heath Road, London E2 9HA
	CambridgeHeathRdArch289.appx.RED_pdfa

	3.2 Temporary Event Notice for Suvlaki - shoreditch, 161 Brick Lane, London E1 6SB
	BrickLa161.27-31Dec.RED
	BrickLa161 supplement report
	BrickLa161.27-31Dec.RED Supplement

	3.3 Application for a New Premises Licence, Jack the Chipper 96 Whitechapel High Street, London E1 7RA
	WhitechapelHighSt96.App.REDv2




